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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Good morning, and

          3  welcome to today's hearing on the Committee of

          4  Transportation.

          5                 My name is John Liu; I have the

          6  privilege of chairing this hearing, and this

          7  Committee.

          8                 First, let me apologize for the delay

          9  in our getting started this morning.  We have three

         10  hearings going on at the same time, and I am the

         11  prime sponsor of one of the bills in the

         12  Environmental Protection Committee, so I needed to

         13  make my statement there before coming over here.

         14  So, I once again apologize for the timing of these

         15  hearings and the delay in the start.

         16                 We have convened today to consider

         17  Proposed Intro. No. 98-A, a legislative initiative

         18  to prohibit the sale, lease, rental, or operation of

         19  motorized scooters in the City of New York.

         20                 This Committee considered Intro. 98

         21  at length, at a full public hearing on March 30th of

         22  2004, and subsequently decided that a number of

         23  amendments were appropriate to improve the bill. The

         24  result is Intro. No. 98- A, which we will hear

         25  today.  The Committee expects to vote on this matter
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          2  at the end of today's public hearing.

          3                 This hearing comes in the wake of the

          4  enormous proliferation of make shift motorized

          5  scooters on City streets and sidewalks in recent

          6  months.  These scooters are frequently powered by

          7  gas or electricity, and travel at speeds up to 40

          8  mph. The motorized scooters present an immediate and

          9  present threat to the well being of pedestrians,

         10  motorists, as well as the environment.  Many of

         11  these devices emit dangerous levels of hazardous

         12  toxins into the air.  And their potential speeds,

         13  lack of safety equipment, and their uncontrolled

         14  emissions presents serious concerns to this

         15  Committee.

         16                 It is important to note that these

         17  motorized scooters are, in fact, already illegal to

         18  operate on the City's streets, sidewalks, and all

         19  other public places.  While these devices fall into

         20  the New York State Legislature's statutory

         21  definition of what a motor vehicle is, they do not

         22  fall into any of the classifications of what types

         23  of motor vehicles may be registered within the New

         24  York State Department of Motor Vehicles.  And

         25  because these motorized scooters are not capable of
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          2  being registered with the DMV, they may, therefore,

          3  not be operated pursuant to State law in any public

          4  spaces.

          5                 The problem, of course, is that

          6  despite the fact that State law makes these devices

          7  illegal to operate, they are all over our city.

          8  Their numbers are increasing by the day, by the

          9  minute.  And worse yet, they are often operated by

         10  adolescence and teenagers.  One of governments

         11  primary responsibilities is to protect the public,

         12  especially our youth. And it is for this reason,

         13  along with the environmental issues presented by

         14  motorized scooters, that Proposed Intro. No. 98- A

         15  seeks, not only to prohibit the use of motorized

         16  scooters in the City completely, but also their

         17  sale, lease, and rental.  If their current illegal

         18  status is not enough to prevent their proliferation

         19  in New York City, we must take measures to cut off

         20  their supply.

         21                 I also want to add a sad note to why

         22  this legislation is so necessary.  On July 29th of

         23  this year, a 19 year- old, pocket rocket rider, was

         24  killed in Queens when the pocket rocket struck a

         25  pothole at great speed.  These pocket rockets look
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          2  like mini- motorcycles, standing no more than 18

          3  inches high, but fall into the category covered by

          4  this bill, dangerously fast, illegal, and

          5  unregulated by the DMV.  This legislation is needed

          6  right now.

          7                 As I stated earlier, this is the

          8  second hearing on this bill.  Now before we move

          9  onto our first witness, I would like to introduce

         10  the members of the Committee who are here with us

         11  today.  Starting from my right, we have Council

         12  Member Sara Gonzalez from Brooklyn, Council Member

         13  Miguel Martinez from Manhattan, and Council Member

         14  Joe Addabbo from Queens.  We are also shortly to be

         15  joined by Council Member Eva Moskowitz from

         16  Manhattan, and Council Member Olive Koppell from the

         17  Bronx, both of whom are at the same Education

         18  Committee hearing I just came from.

         19                 I want to thank the work of Mitch

         20  Schwartz, our Legislative Counsel, and my Chief of

         21  Staff, Bill Hahm (phonetic) on this bill.  And

         22  finally, let me turn the floor over to the Bill's

         23  Prime Sponsor, Council Member Mike McMahon from

         24  Staten Island, who I am certain will introduce some

         25  very important ideas and background behind this
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          2  bill.  Thank you for your leadership in putting this

          3  bill forth, Council Member McMahon.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Thank you,

          5  Mr. Chairman. I thank you for your leadership on

          6  this issue, as well.

          7                 Surprisingly, we began to focus on

          8  this issue primarily as a quality- of- life concern.

          9    We had noticed in our own neighborhoods, and we

         10  have received complaints from different community

         11  activists about, you know, sort of the sense that

         12  there was a plague of a swarm of locusts coming

         13  through the neighborhood, young men and women riding

         14  stand- up scooters that had been motorized, many ad

         15  hoc, many unprofessionally.  So you had these kids

         16  riding around on stand- up razor scooters, and they

         17  were putting gas tanks and motors on the back of

         18  these things, or they were buying them in that form.

         19    And so we introduced our legislation.

         20                 Since that time, the idea of the

         21  motor scooter, or the pocket rocket has come into

         22  fashion, and now you have these mini- motorcycles,

         23  which present the same problem.  So this has grown

         24  from a quality- of- life issue really to a matter of

         25  life and death.
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          2                 What we are seeing now, as we sadly

          3  saw on July 29, is that these scooters, whether they

          4  are stand- ups or sit downstairs, are putting those

          5  who ride them into jeopardy of losing their lives,

          6  it puts pedestrians into jeopardy of serious harm or

          7  death, and other motorists are put into jeopardy, as

          8  well.  Just last week, I turned onto a road that

          9  cuts through Silver Lake Park in my district, and as

         10  I made the turn, a left hand turn, coming at me in

         11  my lane of traffic, directly at me, were two young

         12  men, one on a pocket rocket, and one on one of the

         13  stand- up razors on these scooters, and I had to

         14  brake and actually pull off the side of the road, so

         15  that they would not crash into the front of my car,

         16  and certainly, probably would have been seriously

         17  injured or killed.

         18                 That is the type of situation that

         19  motorists are facing.  That is the type of situation

         20  that homeowners are facing as these things are

         21  extremely loud, and pollute the air, as you pointed

         22  out, Mr. Chairman.  And I think we would be shirking

         23  our duty, if we did not address this issue.  As you

         24  said, they are illegal.  Unfortunately, the

         25  enforcement powers are not in place, and that is
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          2  what this bill does.  We seek to give the police and

          3  the park police the ability to confiscate or impound

          4  these scooters.  And as well to have the Department

          5  of Consumer Affairs go to the point of origin to

          6  address the sale.

          7                 And these are not just being sold on

          8  the corner by self- style merchants.  You can go

          9  into respectable department stores, and these are

         10  being sold for $400.  You can open up your newspaper

         11  and there are flyers dedicated solely to the sale of

         12  these scooters.  It is time to end this

         13  proliferation, it is time to ensure the safety of

         14  our children and other pedestrians and motorists.

         15                 And I thank you for your leadership,

         16  Mr. Chairman. I thank Mitchell Schwartz and all my

         17  colleagues who have co sponsored this bill, and who

         18  are voting for it today.  It is the right thing to

         19  do for the City of New York, and I am proud to be

         20  here today, thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Council

         22  Member McMahon.  With that, I would like to call up

         23  our first panel representing the Administration.  We

         24  have David Woloch, Deputy Commissioner from the

         25  Department of Transportation, and Pauline Toole,
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          2  Deputy Commissioner from the Department of Consumer

          3  Affairs.

          4                 Good morning.

          5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE:  Good

          6  morning.  Is it on?  Good morning, Chairman Liu,

          7  members of the Committee.  I am Pauline Toole.  I am

          8  an Assistant Commissioner at the City's Department

          9  of Consumer Affairs, and I am joined here by David

         10  Woloch, the Deputy Commissioner of External Affairs

         11  of the Department of Transportation.

         12                 Commissioner Gretchen Dykstra asked

         13  me to thank you for this opportunity to comment on

         14  Intro. 98- A, which would prohibit the sale, lease,

         15  rental, or operation of motorized scooters in the

         16  City.  The Department of Consumer Affairs has the

         17  responsibility of regulating point of sale

         18  transactions throughout the City, and while we think

         19  this bill takes a reasonable step forward,

         20  particularly, as it relates to enforcement, we still

         21  have a number of concerns.

         22                 Motor scooters traveling at any speed

         23  can be dangerous for operators and pedestrians

         24  alike, particularly, in an area as densely populated

         25  as our city.  This fact provides the basis for the
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          2  State's Vehicle and Traffic Law.  The provisions

          3  that prohibit the operation of motor scooters on the

          4  City street and sidewalks, period.

          5                 In addition, there are no regulations

          6  dealing with the licensing, insurance, and safety

          7  requirements for motor scooters.  The Administration

          8  believes that the Vehicle and Traffic Law's

          9  prohibition on the operation of all motor scooters

         10  is certainly appropriate, and when properly enforced

         11  can address the goals of this legislation.

         12                 I would like to take this opportunity

         13  to inform you of our Department's effort of

         14  enforcing the existing Consumer Protection Law

         15  against the sale of motorized scooters.  The

         16  Consumer Protection Law requires stores that sell

         17  these scooters to disclose at the point of sale that

         18  motorized scooters cannot be operated on the City

         19  streets and sidewalks or in their parks. The

         20  Department has focused on enforcing this law.

         21                 Our inspectors conducted a sweep in

         22  April and May, they issued 16 violations to the 48

         23  stores visited, which is a rate of 33 percent.

         24  Since then, the issues have issued 21 more

         25  violations during their normal course of inspection
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          2  in every Borough.  Violations were issued to stores

          3  in every Borough, and include such chains as Pep

          4  Boys, Target, and the Sports Authority.  A

          5  consequence of receiving such a violation is that

          6  the store's remedied behavior post the required

          7  signs, and parents and other purchasers then are

          8  alerted to the fact that they cannot use these on

          9  the City streets.

         10                 In another enforcement initiative our

         11  Legal Division has monitored advertisements for

         12  motor scooters, and is preparing violations for all

         13  stores that have advertised without the required

         14  disclaimer.  The Department is also concerned with

         15  the proceed effect the prohibition of sale would

         16  have on reducing the proliferation of these scooters

         17  throughout the City.  Our concern is that since many

         18  motor scooters are not purchased, but actually built

         19  by the operator, and since their sale is not

         20  prohibited, the sale of the part is not prohibited,

         21  throughout the rest of Metropolitan Area,

         22  prohibiting the sale of the scooters will have

         23  limited impact.

         24                 I would also like to add that we

         25  should be mindful of the fact that there are
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          2  legitimate users for these motor scooters on private

          3  property and outside the City limits, and to a

          4  certain extent prohibiting your sale will only

          5  result in consumers taking their business elsewhere.

          6

          7                 The Administration certainly

          8  recognizes the seriousness and prevalence of the

          9  illegal operation of motorized scooters throughout

         10  the City.  And we appreciate the Committee's

         11  enormous effort in trying to effectuate a solution

         12  to this problem.  However, given our position that

         13  the Vehicle and Traffic Laws is sufficient, and our

         14  concerns with limited impact and unintended

         15  consequences, at this time we cannot support Intro.

         16  98- A.

         17                 Thank you for the opportunity to be

         18  here, and we will be happy to answer any questions

         19  you may have.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  No, testimony,

         21  David?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  This is

         23  the testimony from the Administration.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay, before I turn

         25  it over to questions, let me just make a few
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          2  comments.  I truly appreciate the two of you, and

          3  the rest of your team coming down to testify today.

          4  The reason why we are moving ahead with this bill is

          5  that, we understand that the Vehicle and Traffic Law

          6  already prohibits the operation of these devices on

          7  our City streets. But nonetheless, we see them; they

          8  are on the streets.  And the problem was not so bad

          9  when these devices cost perhaps two or three

         10  thousand dollars, or even several hundred dollars.

         11  The problem has been that last summer, we all saw in

         12  circulars distributed with every Sunday newspaper,

         13  motorized scooters, what Council Member McMahon

         14  referred to as the Razor Scooters that were adapted

         15  with motors.  They began to proliferate and be

         16  advertised in those Sunday circulars for as little

         17  as $99, $99 for a motorized scooter.  That was a

         18  huge problem last summer.

         19                 And this summer, we now see these

         20  mini versions of racing motorcycles.  Racing

         21  motorcycles generally are very large, maybe a

         22  thousand CCs cost up to $10,000 each.  These mini

         23  motorcycles stand no higher than 18 inches off the

         24  ground, and they can be purchased for as little as

         25  $200.  That is what the circulars are advertising in
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          2  our Sunday papers.

          3                 So the problem is that, well the

          4  problem has been exacerbated by the fact that these

          5  have become dirt- cheap.  And they are accessible to

          6  teenagers, adolescents, and even pre teenage

          7  adolescents.  And these young people are the people

          8  riding these devices, whether it be the motorized

          9  stand- up scooters or these mini- motorcycles, which

         10  we call Pocket Rockets, and they are creating a

         11  danger.  Not only themselves, for the riders, but

         12  for pedestrians and motorists alike.

         13                 So we are moving ahead with this bill

         14  because the current law and the set of enforcement

         15  practices are clearly insufficient to keep these

         16  dangerous devices off city streets.

         17                 With that, I will turn it over to

         18  Council Member McMahon, who has some questions.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Thank you,

         20  Mr. Chairman. And Deputy Commissioner, I hope,

         21  again, as always, as we always say, our questions

         22  and answers here are never meant to be personal.

         23  However, I just want to say that I am incredulous at

         24  the testimony that is presented here today on behalf

         25  of the Administration.

                                                            16

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2                 Does the Administration believe that

          3  these unlicensed, unregulated, machines that can go

          4  up to 40 mph, carrying children through the streets

          5  of the City of New York present a problem; is it

          6  fair to say that?

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:

          8  Absolutely.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  And is it

         10  also fair to say that it is a problem that we, as a

         11  city, should look at and try to address; is it fair

         12  to say that as well?

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:

         14  Absolutely.  I think the Administration shares your

         15  concerns about these devices.  I think we have a

         16  difference of opinion about the means to address

         17  that concern.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Let me ask

         19  you this, on July 29th, when the young man was

         20  killed on the Pocket Rocket motorcycle, when he was

         21  being placed, being chased by a police officer who

         22  was only trying to enforced the law.  Did the

         23  Administration feel a collective sign of remorseful

         24  at that, is that something that concerned the

         25  Administration?
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE:

          3  Absolutely.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  And when

          5  there were people in the community who tried to

          6  blame the police for that incident; did the

          7  Administration take note of that, and say, you know,

          8  maybe this is a situation that we have to address

          9  and deal with?  Was it fair to say that the

         10  Administration reached that collective decision that

         11  something has to be done, people are dying on these

         12  things?

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  It is

         14  fair to say that we saw that as a tragedy, as I

         15  think everybody in this room did.  I think that we

         16  recognized that this was an issue before that tragic

         17  accident.  And that it certainly heightened

         18  everybody's awareness.  But it was already an issue

         19  that was of concern to us, and still is a concern.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Well, if you

         21  would, conform with what you just said with the

         22  statement that was just read to us.  "Our concern is

         23  that since many motor scooters are not purchased,

         24  but built by the operator, and since their sale is

         25  not prohibited throughout the rest of the
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          2  Metropolitan area, prohibiting their sale will have

          3  limited impact, and may in fact, not be worthwhile

          4  when weighed against losses incurred to businesses

          5  whose customers take their dollars outside the

          6  City."

          7                 Are you telling this Committee that

          8  it is more important to the City of New York to have

          9  a few dollars come into cash registers in the City

         10  than to protect the lives of children and others

         11  throughout this city, is that what you are telling

         12  us today?

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Not at

         14  all, not at all.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Do we not

         16  outlaw the sale of handguns in the City of New York?

         17    And why do we do it?  We do it because we know

         18  they create dangerous situations, and we also know

         19  that guns are being sold in other states.  But we do

         20  not say as a city, we want those dollars coming to

         21  our cash registers, so we can put people in jeopardy

         22  of their lives.

         23                 And now you are coming before this

         24  Committee and you are saying a that a few dollars

         25  going to the cash register are more important than
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          2  the life of the man who was killed in Queens, or

          3  others whose lives may be lost at any time.  Is that

          4  what the Administration wants the people of the City

          5  of New York to believe here?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Not at

          7  all.  I think the point is that these devices are

          8  very easy to get outside of the City, they are easy

          9  to get off the Internet, they are easy to- -

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  So is a gun.

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: --

         12  manufacture.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  So is a gun.

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  They are

         15  easy to manufacture, you know, teenagers can

         16  essentially make the electronic scooters themselves.

         17    And --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  So that

         19  makes it okay to sell them in a local department

         20  store?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Not at

         22  all.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  For $200 to

         24  a 14- year old.

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  The
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          2  concern is that they should not be out there on the

          3  streets and sidewalks.  And we have tools available

          4  to us to enforce that.  And that is what we need to

          5  be focused on.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Well let's

          7  talk about your enforcement.  You said that you gave

          8  16 violations to 48 stores visited.  Now are those

          9  individual stores, or is that throughout the chain?

         10  In other words, did you go to one Target, or did you

         11  give summonses to all the Targets?

         12                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE:  We did

         13  three different things.  The first sweep, the 21

         14  that were recently given were in the course of

         15  normal Borough Patrols and they were for the store

         16  in question.  In addition, the advertisements that

         17  are chain- wide, the chain would receive those

         18  violations.  And the first sweep we did last spring

         19  was with children, and when we went into the store

         20  with kids, and observed that there were no sign.

         21  So, we issued two kinds of violations already, and

         22  the third are underway.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  But if I, in

         24  the store, put up a sign on the wall saying, you

         25  cannot ride this motorcycle in the City of New York,

                                                            21

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  then it is okay.  So the same child can go into that

          3  store and buy the motorcycle and leave, and ride

          4  around the streets of the City of New York, and the

          5  Administration has accomplished nothing.  In no way,

          6  shape, or form, does that initiative stop the sale

          7  or the use of these motorcycles in the City of New

          8  York.  Isn't that correct?

          9                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE:  That

         10  is not exactly correct.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Explain why?

         12                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE:

         13  Because the use of them on the City streets is

         14  prohibited, and the City does take that seriously,

         15  and the scooters are confiscated by the Police

         16  Department during the course of enforcement.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Well two

         18  follow- ups on that.  It is not correct that in any

         19  way that action that you took stopped the sale of

         20  motorcycles.  Isn't that correct?  You may have

         21  fined the owner of the store for not putting up a

         22  sign. But once he puts up the sign, that same child

         23  can buy the motorcycle.  Isn't that correct?  And

         24  walk out of the store with the motorcycle, is that

         25  correct?
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: I don't

          3  know if that is correct or not.  Certainly, once the

          4  sign has been posted, the storeowner has complied

          5  with the law as it exists.  But the notice is such,

          6  and the price of the scooters in the stores we went

          7  to are such, that one would believe that a parent

          8  seeing that sign would not shell out the $200 or

          9  $500 so that their kids couldn't use them on the

         10  City streets.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:

         12  Commissioner, don't you understand that that is

         13  exactly the problem.  That parents are doing it, and

         14  there are children who can obtain the money on their

         15  own.  I want to ask where you live, and don't you

         16  see these things proliferating through our City?

         17  Come to Staten Island, go to Queens, go to the

         18  Bronx, look at Manhattan, look in Brooklyn,

         19  everywhere, they are everywhere.  So your

         20  enforcement efforts are not working.  Maybe your

         21  goal is wrong.  You are seeking to penalize the

         22  business for not posting a sign.

         23                 Our goal here is to limit the use of

         24  these motorcycles and these mini- scooters, and

         25  these Pocket Rockets, and these Razors in the City
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          2  of New York.  How does your initiative, as you have

          3  done up until now, in any way, accomplish that?

          4                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE:  Our

          5  initiative only accomplishes the role it is supposed

          6  to.  It is just to tell people that this is an

          7  illegal use in the City.  The second step of

          8  enforcing the use on the City streets does not fall

          9  to the Department of Consumer Affairs, but to the

         10  Police Department, and they confiscate scooters, and

         11  they try to do their best to make sure that kids are

         12  not on the streets using the scooters.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:

         14  Commissioner, have you spoken with members of the

         15  Police Department and the problems they have

         16  enforcing the current law, right now?  Because I

         17  have, I have spoken to my Borough Commander, I have

         18  spoken to my Precinct Commander, and they told me,

         19  off the record, not to put them on the spot, but

         20  they support this type of legislation because the

         21  law as it exists now does not allow them to

         22  immediately fine the user and to grab the scooter.

         23  And they support this type of bill that makes it

         24  clear.

         25                 Have you, Sir, talk to the Police

                                                            24

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  Department, and asked them how they feel about

          3  enforcing the law currently, and how they feel about

          4  this bill?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:

          6  Absolutely.  And one of the things that we have seen

          7  in certain parts of the City is that different

          8  precincts have embarked on projects to focus

          9  enforcement against scooters.  I think it was one

         10  precinct in Ridgewood had Operation Motorized

         11  Minutes, where they confiscated scooters and issued

         12  summonses for them.  And I think that is the sort of

         13  tool that is available to us, and what the Police

         14  Department has been doing.

         15                 Can they do more?  Perhaps they can.

         16  But we have the ability through existing enforcement

         17  efforts, starting with the Consumer Affairs, and

         18  then also with the Police Department to focus on the

         19  issue.  And the fact is, even if this bill were to

         20  become law, we would still see scooters out there,

         21  when we would still have to have that kind of focus.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Mr.

         23  Chairman, I don't want to take up any more time.  I

         24  know everyone is busy today. But needless to say, I

         25  am outraged by the Administration's position on this
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          2  very crucial matter.  I think it is just a matter of

          3  a turf battle, the idea that they do not want to be

          4  micro managed, or whatever it is, it is beyond

          5  comprehension for me.  And I certainly urge all of

          6  my colleagues to vote for this bill.  If we save one

          7  life, it is worth every effort that we take.

          8                 Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.  I don't

         10  think any of us here are thinking that once we pass

         11  this bill, all of these dangerous devices will

         12  disappear from the streets of New York City.  But it

         13  will, definitely put a huge dent into the supply,

         14  because we are addressing the problem at its source.

         15    People will still be able to go outside the City

         16  to purchase these devices, no doubt about it.  But

         17  the people who are operating these dangerous devices

         18  in the most dangerous manners, will be stopped, and

         19  those are the teenagers, the pre- teenage

         20  adolescents who are able to go to a store with a

         21  couple of hundred dollars to buy these devices.

         22  They are not driving out of the City to go buy one

         23  of these devices; they are going to a local store,

         24  many of which are in the City of New York.

         25                 And I have to say that I share
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          2  Council Member McMahon's frustration in listening to

          3  this testimony.  Number one, because it is not

          4  actually coming from the Department of

          5  Transportation, but coming from the Department of

          6  Consumer Affairs.  This, to us, is not a Consumer

          7  Affairs issue.  It is an issue of safety that is

          8  best addressed by looking at the Transportation

          9  Rules and Regulations, and how they are being

         10  enforced to date.

         11                 We have questions from Council Member

         12  Martinez.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Thank you,

         14  Mr. Chair.  I also want to commend Council Member

         15  McMahon for his leadership on this issue.  I know

         16  that in my district it is a serious issue, I am

         17  surprised at the Administration's position, when not

         18  only are we talking about safety, but when we talk

         19  about issues of quality of life.  This an issue of

         20  noise pollution, many of these scooters are loud,

         21  and some of these kids are using these scooters

         22  during the nighttime, morning time, during the

         23  summer. And I know for my seniors in my district,

         24  this is definitely a safety issue, and many of my

         25  seniors that testified to the fact that they have
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          2  been victim of these scooters, either been hurt or

          3  pushed by kids riding them on the sidewalk.  And the

          4  fact that you say that the policy that is in place

          5  now, by putting a sign, it would avoid or not, or

          6  make a parent aware that the child cannot purchase

          7  it, or he can't purchase it, or she can't purchase

          8  it for the child, it is not even close to the

          9  reality.

         10                 In fact, in my district many of these

         11  kids buy them on their own.  And if they see the

         12  sign with the parent, they will go get it and say

         13  they are not going to ride it in the street.  And

         14  they will just ride it as soon as they hit out the

         15  door.

         16                 The fact is also, that the Police

         17  Department is not doing very much because there is

         18  very little they can do, because it is a safety

         19  hazard for the police to go after a child who is

         20  riding one of these scooters.  But because of the

         21  safety of the child, they will not pursue and

         22  confiscate.  So it is very difficult to enforce for

         23  the Police Department hearing from them at my local

         24  precinct in terms of confiscating these scooters.

         25                 And I think that the more responsible
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          2  approach should be to prohibit the sale of these

          3  scooters in the City of New York.  Unfortunately, I

          4  can only speak for Manhattan, but there are very

          5  little, few backyards in my district where they are

          6  allowed to be used.  And I know I have some

          7  colleagues from Staten Island that may have more

          8  open space than I do, but in Manhattan, and

          9  especially in my district, we have very little

         10  backyards where these things can be used.

         11                 And I want to commend, and I know

         12  that I will be supporting this bill, and I think it

         13  is the responsible thing to do for various reasons,

         14  for safety, quality of life, and especially for our

         15  most vulnerable walking the streets, our seniors.

         16  They are being victimized on a daily basis by these

         17  scooters.

         18                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.

         20  Questions from Council Member Addabbo.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  Thank you,

         22  Mr. Chair. Commissioner Toole, Commissioner Woloch,

         23  thank you very much for being here, and for your

         24  time and testimony.

         25                 Briefly, I just need to agree with my

                                                            29

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  colleague, Council Member McMahon about comparing

          3  the cost of dollars to the City to the cost of lives

          4  to an extent that so much so that twice in your

          5  testimony, on two separate occasions, you mention

          6  dollars and taking business elsewhere.  And again, I

          7  am perplexed by the fact that you would mention it

          8  in two different instances in your testimony.

          9                 And since you brought up the issue,

         10  do you have any idea of what a percentage of these

         11  scooter sales to the storeowners it is?  I mean do

         12  we know if these sale scooters are a major business

         13  for these stores, or is it just so minor that the

         14  issue of dollars to the City is so minute, it really

         15  should not have been brought up anyway?  Do you have

         16  any idea of the percentage of business for the City,

         17  or dollars for the City, regarding the sale of

         18  scooters?

         19                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: I do

         20  not have that information.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  Only because

         22  you when you brought it up, I was hoping that you

         23  would have some information. Because I am of the

         24  opinion that, I think it is so minor, I don't even

         25  think it is an issue, and should never really have
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          2  been an issue, when regarding the lives at stake.

          3                 Obviously, there is a problem with

          4  the current system, whether it be with the law, with

          5  the procedure, or with the enforcement.  And again,

          6  what is your opinion regarding why we so plagued it,

          7  if your faith exists in this current law, the State

          8  law, why are we so plagued, even with the homemade

          9  scooters?

         10                 That is why I believe in Intro. 98-

         11  A, I think there needs to be something else.  And if

         12  you don't believe that 98- A would help because we

         13  have a current existing law, obviously, that

         14  existing law is not really doing the job.  And I am

         15  hoping that with 98- A and the current existing law,

         16  something will be done.

         17                 But, you know, why do you think we

         18  are still being plagued and increasingly every day,

         19  and I live in Queens, in a very residential area,

         20  and I see them, why do you think we are still being

         21  plagued with them?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  You know

         23  I think part of the answer is that this is a new

         24  phenomenon that we did not see a few years ago.  And

         25  you know, I do not think it is something that the
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          2  Police Department can change over night in terms of

          3  how they do enforcement.  We really did not see

          4  these Pocket Rockets until this year.  So I think to

          5  some extent it is adapting the existing enforcement.

          6    But I that is what we are all struggling with.

          7  And I think we are all concerned about this, and I

          8  think the Administration shares your concern.  This

          9  is something that really happened over the past few

         10  years.  I think caught all of us off guard, and

         11  again, we share the concerns that this is an

         12  important quality- of- life issue, as the Councilman

         13  had mentioned.

         14                 And most importantly, that it is a

         15  safety issue. And we, it is something that we want

         16  to grapple with.  I think we don't think that a new

         17  law is necessarily the answer.  I think it is

         18  reasonable that that is an instinct, well, we have a

         19  new problem, let's come up with a new law.

         20                 But I think the first responsibility

         21  is to think about what is actually happening out

         22  there on the streets and the tools that we have.

         23  And I think we do have an enforcement tool. And I

         24  think we have seen, in certain parts of the City,

         25  where the Police Department uses that effectively.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  Lastly,

          3  wouldn't you think that the Police Department would

          4  just love to have a law in place that will give them

          5  more power, more enforcement power to actually take

          6  the scooters?  I mean, wouldn't you think that they

          7  would embrace 98- A to give them additional

          8  authority, and additional enforcement procedures to

          9  take these items off the street, save a life or two,

         10  and help enforce, maybe a current existing law?  But

         11  don't you think 98- A gives them more power, and

         12  don't you think they would embrace that?

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  They can

         14  still take them now, they can still take them off

         15  the streets, when they encounter them.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  But again,

         17  don't you think 98- A would help the police even

         18  more?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Look, I

         20  cannot speak for every member of the 40,000 persons

         21  in the Police Department. But I know institutionally

         22  they share our position.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  Thank you.

         24  Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Council
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          2  Member Addabbo.  Council Member Sanders.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS:  Thank you,

          4  Mr. Chair.  I think this is a very worthy hearing,

          5  almost afternoon, no, still morning.  Good morning,

          6  Assistant and Deputy Commissioners.  I am the Chair

          7  of Economic Development for the City Council for the

          8  City of New York.  I have been lobbied these, by the

          9  night life industry when there was talk of a ban

         10  over cigarettes.  I even the pleasure of meeting Mr.

         11  Softee over the ice cream possibility of a ban of

         12  them using their trucks.  I have yet to receive one

         13  phone call from any of the Pocket Rocket lobby, if

         14  you wish.  I have not received anything from any of

         15  these guys complaining that their livelihood would

         16  be ruined or in danger.

         17                 Even in my own district, the

         18  Southeast, the 31st, there is a proliferation of

         19  these Pocket Rockets.  In fact, there is a corner in

         20  my district, a rather seedy corner, it may be just

         21  one, but I see them selling Pocket Rockets on the

         22  street.  There are no stores, there is nothing

         23  around there, there are just some people selling

         24  Pocket Rockets on the street.

         25                 I think that this bill, you know, I
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          2  am not even signed onto this bill, if you noticed.

          3  But I think that without this bill we are giving a

          4  wink and a nod to the business community.  We are

          5  saying, just put up a little sign saying don't do it

          6  in New York City.  You know that they are going to

          7  do it, we know that they are going to do it, but you

          8  know, you are out of the loop, you are safe.  And

          9  everybody that comes in, winks and a nod, sure, we

         10  will not drive, not drive them in New York City,

         11  absolutely, sure, where do I put the money down.

         12                 My son has hit the glorious year of

         13  14, and that is a story in and of itself.  And I

         14  dread to think that he could go and buy one of these

         15  Pocket Rockets.  I dread it for my son, for myself,

         16  and for the rest of my neighbors, of course.  We

         17  have to be able to do something.  I will, of course,

         18  not allow my son to own one of these things.  But if

         19  he scrounges up the money somehow, and he gets out

         20  there and he can just buy one, I know he will not go

         21  into Nassau County or other places to do it.

         22                 On this issue I would differ with the

         23  Administration.  I think that without this we are

         24  saying to the police, we want you to individually

         25  chase and chase these Pocket Rockets through the
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          2  street, which is a very dangerous thing right there.

          3    The Pocket Rockets have the maneuverability, I

          4  mean you could just see it in your mind, and it is a

          5  fearsome site.  I think that we need to go to the

          6  source on this one.  I think that we need to say to

          7  the distributors, no, you cannot do this in New York

          8  City, not legally.  And whatever, I will take my

          9  chances with the Pocket Rocket lobby, I think I will

         10  take my chances with them.

         11                 Mr. Chair, I would like to sign up as

         12  a co- sponsor of this legislation.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, it is

         14  noted.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS:  Thank you

         16  very much.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Council

         18  Member Sanders.  And a final question from Council

         19  Member Koppell.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Yes, thank

         21  you.  Good morning.  How large is the sign that a

         22  store has to post to tell people that the scooters

         23  and these mini- bikes are not legal to use in the

         24  City?

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE:  It has
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          2  to be clearly visible at the point of sale.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  But is there

          4  any minimum size?

          5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE:  There

          6  is not a minimum size.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  I see.  And

          8  when you go into a store, do you always read all the

          9  signs that are up, that are in that store?

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE:  Not

         11  always, but I frequently look at the signs at the

         12  cash register because they give the return policy

         13  and other information that is key for a consumer, so

         14  those signs I look at.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  So there are

         16  more than one sign at the cash register, - -

         17                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE:  That

         18  is true.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: - - which

         20  would not necessarily call your attention to this

         21  sign, if there are many signs.

         22                 The other question I had, is given

         23  the fact that, I guess one of the rationales here is

         24  that you can buy these outside the City.  I read

         25  recently in the newspaper that Target opened a big
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          2  store in Brooklyn, and it is apparently in a good

          3  shopping center near transportation, and they expect

          4  it to have great success.  And I read that, and then

          5  only a couple of days later Target opened a store

          6  right in my district, or right next to my district,

          7  Miguel and I share the location.  And why do you

          8  think they did that?  Why did they open one in

          9  Brooklyn, and in Bronx/Manhattan, why do you think

         10  they did that?

         11                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE:  I

         12  would imagine they think there is a market with

         13  people who will purchase items at their store.  But

         14  please, you should know that we issued a violation

         15  to the Target for not putting their signage up when

         16  they selling such scooters, and we trust that they

         17  will comply.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Well the

         19  point I am trying to make is, obvious, people from

         20  the Bronx are not going to go to Brooklyn to shop at

         21  Target, and that is why they built a store in the

         22  Bronx.  Because they expect people in the Bronx to

         23  shop in the Bronx.  Similarly, while there may be an

         24  odd person or two who lives in the City of New York

         25  who might go to Nassau County or Westchester County
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          2  for that matter, or conceivably Buffalo, to buy one

          3  of these devices, obviously, most people would not.

          4  And most people from the Bronx are not going to go

          5  to Target in Brooklyn, even though it is a wonderful

          6  store.

          7                 So the fact that these are for sale

          8  elsewhere, and I think it was Councilman McMahon who

          9  pointed out that we ban sale of guns in New York

         10  State, even though you can buy the guns in Virginia,

         11  and other places.  Because we do not think they

         12  should be available in New York State, in the same

         13  way that they are available elsewhere.  So I think

         14  your argument just doesn't hold any water, and I

         15  would urge you and the Mayor to reconsider.        If

         16  a dangerous instrumentality is being sold in New

         17  York City that is particularly dangerous because of

         18  the nature of the City, the closeness in which

         19  people live, and the congestion that we have, and

         20  the lack of open space, and the lack of trails and

         21  things like that, then we shouldn't be selling those

         22  dangerous instrumentality, especially when children

         23  are one of the principal objects of the sale.

         24                 And I think, frankly, it looks almost

         25  foolish, almost foolish to recommend that these
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          2  items should be for sale in New York.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Council

          4  Member Koppell.  I just want to, we want to thank

          5  the Administration for their input today.

          6                 I do want to make two quick notes,

          7  one being that if we are suggesting that enforcement

          8  procedures, it takes more time to change enforcement

          9  procedures than it takes to enacted legislation,

         10  then I think someone is not on top of things.

         11  Legislation is by nature, a long- term process.

         12  Changing enforcement procedures should be pretty

         13  quick, especially when dangerous devices evolve and

         14  become more, and proliferate on our City streets.

         15                 And second is that based on this

         16  testimony from the Department of Consumer Affairs,

         17  and how similar it is to other testimony I have

         18  heard from the Consumer Affairs Department, it seems

         19  to me, colleagues, that it might be some kind of

         20  effort to, perhaps, meld Consumer Affairs with Small

         21  Business Services.  Because it is almost,  --

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Not to

         23  my knowledge.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Yeah, not to any of

         25  our knowledge.  But this kind of testimony, it
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          2  doesn't even seem like it would be the purview of

          3  the Consumer Affairs Department, rather it would be

          4  the purview of the Small Business Services

          5  Department, to advocate for businesses in New York

          6  City.

          7                 Thank you very much for your input

          8  this morning.

          9                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE:  Thank

         10  you.

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Thank

         12  you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  The next panel we

         14  have will consist of Michael Morrell from the

         15  Westerly Improvement Society in Staten Island, and

         16  Matt Dailida.  And following that panel, we will

         17  have the final panel of Joan Jarowski, Harris

         18  Silver, and Noah Budnick.

         19                 Before you testify, I would like to

         20  call, ask the clerk to open the rolls for voting,

         21  because one of our Committee members needs to head

         22  for a, head out to take care of something urgent.

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member

         24  Moskowitz.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ:  I vote
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          2  aye.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Mr. Chair,

          4  since you are doing that, would it be possible for

          5  me to register my vote at this time?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  All right,

          7  absolutely.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  I do also want to

         10  remind the Committee members we have, five more

         11  people to hear from.  The testimonies will be

         12  succinct.

         13                 Go ahead.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Okay, could

         15  my name be called, please.

         16                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Council Member

         17  Koppell.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Aye.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Council Member

         20  Koppell, see you back at the Education hearing.

         21                 MR. MORRELL:  Good morning, Mr.

         22  Chairman and members of the Committee.  My name is

         23  Michael Morrell.  I am President of the Westerleigh

         24  Improvement Society, a civic association located on

         25  Staten Island.  Our Society has a membership of
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          2  approximately 700 members in the Westerleigh Section

          3  of the Island.  I am here today to voice the support

          4  of our Society for Intro. 98- A, sponsored by over

          5  20 Council members, including our Councilman,

          6  Michael McMahon. Over the past few years, the

          7  Society has received numerous complaints from area

          8  residents concerning the operation of motorized

          9  scooters in our community.  The operators of these

         10  scooters are primarily used by those who operate

         11  them recklessly. Area residents have observed the

         12  scooters being used in total disregard for the

         13  personal safety of their operators, as well as

         14  motorists and pedestrians.  Recently youthful

         15  operators of these scooters have caused damage to

         16  vehicles while attempting to maneuver them through

         17  the local streets.

         18                 The parents of the operators have

         19  expressed no willingness to curb the operation of

         20  the scooters voluntarily. Big problems associated

         21  with the operation of motorized scooters include

         22  their noise, pollution, and threats to the well

         23  being of motorists and pedestrians.  Motorists,

         24  unaware of the presence of scooters cannot

         25  anticipate them, and safely operate their
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          2  automobiles.  Pedestrians are caught off guard by

          3  the speed and direction of the scooters.  Personal

          4  injury and property damage resulting from collisions

          5  is often uncompensated because of the lack of

          6  insurance coverage.

          7                 Despite the efforts of the police to

          8  discourage their use, parents continue to purchase

          9  motorized scooters for their children.  Intro. 98- A

         10  would prohibit the sale of scooters in New York

         11  City, and would subject the youth user to

         12  substantial fine and impoundment of the scooter.

         13                 The Westerleigh Improvement Society

         14  strongly supports this legislation.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.  Mr.

         17  Dailida.

         18                 MR. DAILIDA:  Good morning, Mr.

         19  Chairman, members of the Committee.  For the record,

         20  my name it Matt Dailida.  I am the Director of

         21  Government Affairs for Segway LLC, developer, and

         22  manufacturer of the Segway Human Transporter, (HT).

         23                 I appreciate the opportunity to

         24  address the Committee on the proposed ordinance,

         25  Intro. 98- A, and on behalf of Segway, want to thank
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          2  the Committee for recognizing and distinguishing the

          3  Segway HT or E- pams from other gas and electric

          4  driven wheel conveyances.

          5                 Segway continues to be encouraged by

          6  the number of people and organizations who are

          7  adopting the Segway into their transportation needs.

          8    And, as has been our policy since day one, we

          9  continue to work with regulatory officials to ensure

         10  that he Segway is properly and safely introduced

         11  into the public environment, and we look forward to

         12  those future discussions for the City of New York.

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.

         15                 MR. DAILIDA:  And for the record, we

         16  are, obviously, supportive of the legislation that

         17  is drafted.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you very much

         19  for your testimony, and for joining us this morning.

         20                 MR. MERRELL:  Thank you.

         21                 MR. DAILIDA:  Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Finally, our last

         23  panel, Joan Jarowski, Harris Silver, and Noah

         24  Budnick, please, join us at the witness table.

         25                 And a comment about Mr. Dailida's
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          2  comments.  We did hear the testimony from our

          3  hearing earlier this year, and we have modified the

          4  bill to not include in our restrictions the sale of

          5  electric driven scooters that go no more than 15

          6  mph. And that was to recognize the fact that there

          7  are people out there, mostly professionals, who do

          8  use these kinds of devices.

          9                 MS. JAROWSKI:  Okay, I am one of

         10  those people using an electric scooter going under

         11  15 miles an hour.  And I did come here in March to

         12  state my views about that, and I want to heartedly

         13  thank all of you for hearing what I had to say.

         14                 This is my first chance I ever taken

         15  to address a body of state or local government, and

         16  I feel quite successful and happy.

         17                 You still do keep referring to

         18  children all the time though.  Children, children,

         19  children.  I haven't heard you mention at all about

         20  us adults that are riding these things.  And I

         21  didn't know if I was going to support 98- A when I

         22  came in, or not.  And I have to say, I am, I am

         23  supporting it.

         24                 I am a little unnerved though that

         25  you haven't considered age qualifications, permits,

                                                            46

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  licensing, because I think the reason that you

          3  started this whole debate was because the New York

          4  State Assembly does have proposal, I don't know if

          5  they will ever get around to enacting it, because

          6  they don't have a single sponsor on it yet.  But

          7  they are considering making these well built

          8  electric, and I suppose gas models also,

          9  registerable.  And that is why I have written this

         10  statement, which I would like to read into the

         11  record.  It is not what you are doing, but it is

         12  something that I think might be on the record as an

         13  idea, perhaps, in the future.  So I will just read

         14  it.

         15                 Thank you for agreeing to look at the

         16  language in Proposal No. 572, now 98- A, relating to

         17  the use of the electric scooters.  New York is just

         18  one of a handful of states that has not yet taken

         19  the step to legalize the use of slow going electric

         20  vehicles.

         21                 A bill has been pending in the New

         22  York State Assembly, Transportation Committee, which

         23  will eventually decide rules guiding the use of

         24  these Class C speed vehicles, that is 20 and less,

         25  to eventually make them registerable.  Bill A- 1588
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          2  states, "Justification: It is currently illegal to

          3  operate motorized scooters on public streets and

          4  roadways in New York State, because these vehicles

          5  are incapable of being registered with the

          6  Department of Motor Vehicles under the Vehicle and

          7  Traffic Law.  Because motorized scooters are an

          8  environmentally friendly mode of transportation,

          9  this legislation authorizes the Commissioner of

         10  Motor Vehicles to promulgate rules and regulations

         11  pertaining to the registration, insuring and

         12  licensing of these vehicles, which must include

         13  criteria for the safe operation of these vehicles."

         14                 We support movement on this Assembly

         15  bill.  In the meantime, and in line with the spirit

         16  of the above pending legislation, we suggest that

         17  language be adopted by the City of New York so as

         18  not to preclude the sale and safe use of these

         19  vehicles by and to responsible adults.

         20                 We suggest some or all of the

         21  following parameters for users of these vehicles

         22  under 20 mph:

         23                 Age 18 or the possession of a

         24  driver's license.

         25                 The carrying of identification
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          2  containing name and address, and possibly a photo.

          3                 The safe use of a vehicle according

          4  to the rules of the road for bicycles.

          5                 The use of a helmet, flashers, front

          6  and back for night driving.

          7                 That is all I have to say.  And

          8  again, I thank very much for the exceptions you have

          9  made to the rule.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.  Mr.

         12  Silver.

         13                 MR. SILVER:  My name is Harris

         14  Silver, and I represent the group City Streets.  The

         15  mission of City Streets is to make New York City the

         16  most pedestrian safe city in the world.

         17                 Additionally, City Streets has the

         18  most amount of qualitative and quantitative research

         19  of any transportation advocacy group in the country

         20  at this point on Segway use in what Dan Sturgess,

         21  the inventor of NEV, Neighborhood Electric Vehicles,

         22  calls fixed cities.

         23                 I want to thank the Council for

         24  removing Segways and electric scooters from the

         25  bill. I think it is a very wise, and a very, very
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          2  wise decision for the future of the City.  But I

          3  also wanted to let the Council know that you are not

          4  alone.

          5                 During the RNC, I had the occasion to

          6  allow approximately 50 NYPD Bicycle Police to try

          7  out the Segway, and they absolutely loved the

          8  machine.  On Monday, I talked to Commissioner

          9  Benepe, of Parks, and he sees a great future for

         10  Segways inside the Park System.  And I also had the

         11  occasion to talk directly with Mayor Bloomberg on

         12  Monday, as well, whose direct quote was, "I agree

         13  with you Harris, it would be silly for the City to

         14  ban Segways."

         15                 On Tuesday, I met with Richard

         16  Mueller of the Manhattan Borough President's Office.

         17    He is their Chief Transportation Police Analyst,

         18  and he had a lot of concerns because of the TA memo,

         19  which is actually filled with a lot of incorrect

         20  data on Segway use.  And what is important about the

         21  memo too, is the RPA has basically signed off of it,

         22  and I also had the occasion to talk to Robert

         23  Kennedy, who was aghast that the NRDC would sign

         24  onto such a memo, and said he was looking into it,

         25  but he has not gotten back to it.
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          2                 I also talked on Tuesday with Mayor

          3  Norquist, he is the former Mayor of Milwaukee, and

          4  currently the President of the Congress of New

          5  Urbanism.  And he also, within the school of thought

          6  of the Congress of New Urbanism, he thinks there is

          7  a great future for this, as not only a device to

          8  move around, but also as a planning tool for Urban

          9  Planners to start planning with.

         10                 But I think most important to the

         11  Council is the public.  And I think it is important

         12  for you to know through our research that the public

         13  is 99.9999 percent in favor of this.  So it is kind

         14  of a nice intersection when you have public policy

         15  that is doing the right thing for the public, and

         16  everyone is sort of in agreement.

         17                 And so I would just like to close by

         18  sort of imagine 100 years from now, when pedestrian

         19  fatalities reach zero, which is the goal that we

         20  would like to see.  Where injuries go from about

         21  15,000 now also to zero, as close to zero as

         22  possible, and New York City is the safest pedestrian

         23  city in the world.  And I imagine an elementary

         24  school kid doing some research and wondering how

         25  this all started, and maybe he would think that it
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          2  was decisions like this that got us to this place

          3  that we need to get to.

          4                 So thank you very much.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.  And

          6  Noah Budnick representing Transportation

          7  Alternatives.

          8                 MR. BUDNICK:  Good morning.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Good morning.

         10                 MR. BUDNICK:  Thank you for inviting

         11  me here this morning.  My name is Noah Budnick, I am

         12  the Projects Director for Transportational

         13  Alternatives, where New York City's Advocates for

         14  Bicycles and Pedestrians were established in 1973,

         15  and have worked diligently for the past three

         16  decades working to make New York City safer for

         17  people who bike and walk around.

         18                 I am also here on behalf of the Tri-

         19  State Transportation Campaign, which are the

         20  Metropolitan Areas regional advocates on sensible

         21  transportation policy.

         22                 I would also like to call to your

         23  attention that I have delivered memos from a number

         24  of our colleagues on this issue from the New York

         25  Public Interest Research Group, from Edith Prentiss,
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          2  who serves on the Manhattan Borough- wide

          3  Interagency Council on the Aging, she is also the

          4  Chair of the Disability Network of New York

          5  Transportation Committee, and a member of Disabled

          6  in Action.  I also brought a memo from the New York

          7  Bicycling Coalition, this morning.

          8                 And I want to thank the Committee,

          9  especially Council Member McMahon for really going

         10  after the gas and electric powered scooters, which

         11  we believe are a menace.  And we believe this bill,

         12  if passed, will do a lot to improve the safety on

         13  New York City streets.

         14                 But I have to say, for the record,

         15  that our organizations, and if you read through the

         16  testimony that I brought today from our colleagues,

         17  that we do not support 98- A, we support Intro. 98,

         18  which we believe is much more thorough and would do

         19  much to improve safety in the City.  So as you go

         20  through my testimony, you will find some notes at

         21  the end that go into some more detail backing up

         22  some of our questions, probably on pages 2 and 3 of

         23  that book that I brought today.

         24                 So again, thank you for targeting

         25  these dangerous gas and electric power scooters, so-
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          2  called, pocket bike, mini bikes, go- peds, and go-

          3  carts, are already illegal to drive.  And as

          4  everyone has pointed out becoming popular purchases

          5  among New York City's adolescents, teenagers, and

          6  young adults.  The motorized scooters are a threat

          7  to their riders and to pedestrians, especially

          8  children, the elderly, and the disabled. And they

          9  are driven without regard for the law; they are

         10  driven recklessly against the flow of traffic and on

         11  sidewalks and parks, and on bridge pads.  The noise

         12  and smoke they produce pollute the environment and

         13  degrade the quality of life in the City.  Segway

         14  scooters are, as they are also known, "electric

         15  personal assistive mobility devices," are also

         16  illegal to drive, but present a specific threat to

         17  pedestrians because this brand of motorized scooter

         18  is marketed to be driven on sidewalks.  And as we

         19  all know, New York City sidewalks are probably the

         20  most crowded sidewalks in the country.

         21                 Again, I want to  thank the Committee

         22  for working towards this tougher legislation, and

         23  again, we support Intro. 98.

         24                 Scooters are illegal to operate

         25  because they are dangerous, and because they are
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          2  illegal to operate, it should also be illegal to

          3  sell them.  The Council members were very concerned

          4  as are the other colleagues that have submitted

          5  testimony today, that Intro. 98 is not strong

          6  enough, because it allows the sale of some brands of

          7  illegal motorized scooters, particularly Segways,

          8  which as I mentioned are marketed to be driven on

          9  New York City sidewalks, which is illegal.  I might

         10  also add that Segway scooters are not intended to be

         11  mobility aids for the disabled, and they actually

         12  pose specific threats to pedestrians, especially the

         13  disabled.

         14                 Pedestrians are already the most

         15  vulnerable and beleaguered travelers in New York

         16  City.  They should not have to compete for space

         17  with or dodge any motor vehicle driven on the

         18  sidewalk or any other walking, park or bridge path.

         19  Pedestrians should not be subjected to collision

         20  with any motorized vehicle, be it a car, motorcycle,

         21  gas or electric motor scooter, or Segway scooter.

         22  Motor vehicles should not be on the sidewalks,

         23  period. And for these same reasons adult bicyclists

         24  are prohibited from riding on New York City

         25  sidewalks, and this Council has spent a lot of time
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          2  debating that and making the laws tougher on that to

          3  keep cyclists off of sidewalks, we share that

          4  sentiment.  And for this very same reasons,

          5  pedestrians should not have to contend with any

          6  vehicle on the sidewalks.  Sidewalks are the domains

          7  of pedestrians, and pedestrians only.

          8                 Segway scooters and electric scooters

          9  capable of speeds less than 15 mph exempted from

         10  Intro. 98- A, and are currently legal other operate

         11  on any public street, highway, sidewalk, bicycle and

         12  pedestrian bridge path, and multi- use path in New

         13  York City and State.  Unlike other illegal gas and

         14  electric powered scooters whose sales are banned by

         15  Intro. 98, it should also be illegal to sell these

         16  illegal motor scooters, and this is what Intro. 98

         17  does.

         18                 Should the day come when the State of

         19  New York and the Department of Motor Vehicles

         20  regulates scooters and legally allow them to be

         21  driven on public roads in New York State, then such

         22  a regulation should legislate that any approved

         23  scooter, regardless of brand, be driven on streets

         24  and prohibited from driving on sidewalks, bicycle

         25  and pedestrian paths, and multi- use paths.
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          2                 But until the State approves the

          3  operation of these motor scooters, it should not be

          4  legal to sell them.

          5                 One of our greatest concerns is that

          6  there is not a lot of formal testing by any

          7  government agency, as to the safety of any of these

          8  scooters.  The Consumer Product Safety Commission,

          9  the City and State of New York, have not conducted

         10  any crash or collision tests, or documented injuries

         11  caused by any of the illegal motor scooters we are

         12  here to discuss today. And so with no information

         13  available, we do not see a basis for allowing some

         14  brands of scooters and not others.

         15                 And we don't feel that New York City

         16  should be a laboratory, and New Yorkers be reduced

         17  to lab rats for an experiment.  We also feel that

         18  the exemption of electric scooters that cannot

         19  travel more than 15 miles an hour, and of Segway

         20  scooters, will result in public confusion over what

         21  types of motor scooters can and cannot be legally

         22  sold in New York City. And it can also lead people

         23  to believe that these types of scooters are legal to

         24  drive in New York City and State, which according to

         25  New York State Vehicle and Traffic Law, the New York

                                                            57

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  City Traffic Rules, and the State Department of

          3  Motor Vehicles, they are not.

          4                 So with these questions at hand, we

          5  do not understand why Intro. 98- A grants

          6  preferential treatment to certain brands of illegal

          7  motor scooters, and why it seeks to ban others.  And

          8  for these reasons, we support Intro. 98, but not

          9  Intro. 98- A.

         10                 Thank you very much.  If you have any

         11  questions, I would be happy to answer them.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, for the

         13  record, we do have written testimony submitted by

         14  NYPIRG, New York Public Interest Research Group, and

         15  also by New York Bicycling Coalition, and Edith

         16  Prentiss from Disabled In Action.  Yes, and the

         17  testimony from these three organizations support

         18  passage of the original Intro. 98.

         19                 Let me say for the record that the

         20  reason why we carved out the electric driven

         21  scooters that do not go more than 15 mph, is because

         22  they are not the, they are not contributing to the

         23  problem that we are trying to solve.  The problem of

         24  dangerous devices, primarily being driven by

         25  teenagers and adolescents, and causing, not only
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          2  physical danger to the riders and to pedestrians and

          3  to motorists, but also creating a great deal of air

          4  and noise pollution.  Electric scooters or these

          5  electric devices that do not go more than 15 mph are

          6  not really the devices that are contributing to the

          7  problems that we are trying to eliminate, and at the

          8  same time, are used in legitimate ways, particularly

          9  by people for business and other professional

         10  endeavors.

         11                 A question from Council Member

         12  Martinez, and then we are going to take the vote.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  In your

         14  statement, I saw that you said, the position of your

         15  coalition is that you do not support any motorized

         16  device on the sidewalk.  Is that correct?

         17                 MR. BUDNICK:  Yes.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Including

         19  the electrical wheelchairs.

         20                 MR. BUDNICK:  I'm sorry, both bill 98

         21  and 98- A have an exemption for wheelchairs and

         22  other mobility aids designed for use by disabled

         23  persons.  And that we support.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  So any

         25  other device, would you agree that the Segways could
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          2  be used by someone who has the inability or needs

          3  that mode of transportation because of whatever

          4  physical impediment that they may have?  And I am

          5  not advocating for Segway, I just want to get an

          6  idea.

          7                 MR. BUDNICK:  In researching this,

          8  what I found out was that wheelchairs and other

          9  electric wheelchairs and scooters that you see by

         10  disabled people have to be approved, and they go

         11  through an FDA process.  They have to have some sort

         12  of certification in order to be covered by medical

         13  insurance, Medicaid, Medicare, other insurance.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Fair

         15  enough.

         16                 MR. BUDNICK:  Okay.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Fair

         18  enough.  Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Council

         20  Member Martinez, and a final statement from Council

         21  Member McMahon.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Thank you,

         23  Mr. Chairman. And my colleagues, I will be brief, I

         24  don't mean to take too much time here.

         25                 Mr. Budnick, you raised some good
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          2  points, and I want the legislative history here to

          3  be very clear.  This legislation and the vote that

          4  we take today, and hopefully next Tuesday, does not

          5  and is not intended to legalize Segways or legalize

          6  electric powered scooters that, or devices, that go

          7  less than 15 mph.  We simply do not deal with them

          8  in this legislation.

          9                 And as the Chairman said, we seek to

         10  address a very specific problem, and that is, you

         11  know, these scooters, as I said before, that are

         12  swarming through our neighborhoods like a plague of

         13  locusts, quality- of- life issues and safety issues.

         14  That is what the record should reflect, and that is

         15  our intent.

         16                 You certainly have the right to draft

         17  another type of bill to deal with the concerns you

         18  have, and bring that to the City Council for

         19  consideration.  But what we are seeking here today

         20  is to address the issues that we are confronted, but

         21  not to legalize anything.

         22                 So those are, maybe, issues that are

         23  left for another day.  But we do not make any

         24  positive or affirmative vote or statement regarding

         25  those issues.
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          2                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  Thank you,

          3  my colleagues.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Council

          5  Member McMahon for putting forth this bill.  At this

          6  point, there being no other witnesses and no further

          7  questions, I would call for a vote on this bill.

          8  And I would recommend, colleagues, that we all vote

          9  aye.  Will the clerk please call the roll?

         10                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Liu.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  Yes.

         12                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Addabbo.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  Mr. Chair, I

         14  just want to take a moment to commend you, the

         15  Committee staff, and my colleague here, Council

         16  Member McMahon on the work that you have done on 98-

         17  A.  I will vote yes, and I would also request to be

         18  added as a co- sponsor to it.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.

         20                 COUNCIL CLERK: Martinez.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  May I be

         22  excused to explain my vote?

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Please, do.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Thank you,

         25  Mr. Chair.  I also want to commend Council Member
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          2  McMahon and yourself for your leadership in putting,

          3  in moving this bill forward.  I also want to

          4  indicate that, for the record, it is of my concern

          5  that not only are we addressing an issue of safety,

          6  but an issue of quality of life in our city and in

          7  our communities.  And I proudly vote aye on it, and

          8  I hope that the Administration could, as a prime

          9  initiative of the Administration is to reduce noise

         10  pollution, and to increase quality of life.  This is

         11  a major issue that is impacting on the quality of

         12  life for many of our community, because of the noise

         13  that is produced by these scooters, and the little

         14  motor cycles.

         15                 The same is true in terms of the

         16  safety, again, as I mentioned earlier, our most

         17  vulnerable, our seniors.  So I would probably vote

         18  aye, and I know that in my district, people will be

         19  welcoming of this new legislation.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Sanders.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS:  Permission

         23  to explain my vote, Mr. Chair?

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Yes, Sir.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS:  I certainly
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          2  believe that there is a glaring need for this.  I

          3  have certain concerns over the carve out for Segway.

          4    The information provided by NYPIRG, New York City

          5  Council Transportation, I am sorry, Ms. Prentiss,

          6  Edith Prentiss, the New York Bike Coalition, Bicycle

          7  Coalition, and Transportation Alternatives, as

          8  certain, it really is something that we need to look

          9  at.

         10                 In it, Ms. Prentiss said, that the

         11  same person who is disabled would have real

         12  difficulty using a Segway, they are not the type of

         13  person who, perhaps, would use a Segway. However,

         14  the proliferation of the pocket rockets is such that

         15  I agree that we will have to return to that on

         16  another day.

         17                 With that in mind, I vote aye on

         18  this, and express a concern.  Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.

         20                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Gonzalez.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ:  Permission

         22  to explain my vote, Chairman?

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Please do.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ:  First of

         25  all, I would like to thank the Chairman and Council
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          2  Member McMahon for all the work you have done with

          3  this.  And then I want to say that in Brooklyn,

          4  District 38, our streets are very, very crowded.

          5  People are living in areas that they never lived

          6  before.  And so in the interest of protecting our

          7  children and our seniors, I vote aye.  And I thank

          8  you today.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.

         10                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Lanza.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA:  Permission to

         12  explain my vote, Mr. Chair?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Please do.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA:  Briefly.  As

         15  the motorized scooters, which are the subject of

         16  this bill are already illegal to operate within the

         17  City confines, it certainly makes sense to ban their

         18  sale within the City confines.  And so I commend

         19  Councilman McMahon, and you, Mr. Chair, and the

         20  members of this Committee, and I vote aye.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.

         22                 COUNCIL CLERK:  By a vote of 8 in the

         23  affirmative, 0 in the negative, and no abstentions.

         24  The item is adopted. Council members, please sign

         25  the Committee report.  Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  With that, this

          3  hearing of the Transportation Committee is

          4  adjourned.

          5                 (Hearing adjourned at 12:00 p.m.)

          6                 (The following testimony was read

          7  into the record.)

          8

          9  Testimony of:

         10  Russ Haven

         11  Legislative Counsel

         12  New York Public Interest Research Group

         13                 This statement is submitted by Russ

         14  Haven, Legislative Counsel for the New York Public

         15  Interest Research Group (NYPIRG).   Thank you for

         16  the opportunity to comment on Proposed Intro. No.

         17  98- A, legislation that seeks to address the problem

         18  of motorized scooter use in New York City.

         19                 NYPIRG supports the original Intro.

         20  98, which did not contain an exemption for a narrow

         21  class of electric scooters. We see no rational

         22  public policy basis for exempting certain electric

         23  scooters from the proposed law, and we urge that

         24  Intro. 98- A be amended to remove this provision.

         25                 NYPIRG is New York State's largest
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          2  consumer protection, environmental preservation, and

          3  social justice research and advocacy organization.

          4  As you know, NYPIRG's Straphangers Campaign has been

          5  organizing and advocating on behalf of mass transit

          6  users and issues related to public transportation

          7  for more than two decades.  As a consumer protection

          8  group, part of NYPIRG's focus historically has been

          9  to support policies that further public safety, by

         10  reducing to the greatest extent, practicable

         11  injuries and deaths from products and activities.

         12                 Proposed Intro. No. 98- A would amend

         13  the Administrative Code to prohibit the sale, lease,

         14  rental, or operation in the City of New York of

         15  certain electric and gasoline powered scooters.  New

         16  York State Vehicle and Traffic Law and Department of

         17  Motor Vehicles regulations and policies currently

         18  forbid the operation of motorized vehicles, with the

         19  exception of approved and licensed wheelchairs, on

         20  the streets and sidewalks of New York State.

         21                 Section 2 of the bill defines

         22   "motorized scooters to include wheeled device[s]"

         23  That are "powered by an electric motor or by a

         24  gasoline motor that is capable of propelling the

         25  device without human power" and which "may not be
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          2  registered with the New York State Department of

          3  Motor Vehicles."  Wheelchairs and mobility devices

          4  for disabled persons are expressly exempted. The

          5  bill also would except certain electric motorized

          6  vehicles from this definition, as discussed below.

          7                 Violators of the prohibition on the

          8  sale, lease, or rental of a motorized scooter would

          9  be subject to a civil penalty of $1,000,

         10  imprisonment for 15 days, or both.  Violators of the

         11  prohibition on the operation of a motorized scooter

         12  would be subject to a civil penalty of up to $500,

         13  punishment in accordance with Vehicle and Traffic

         14  Law, and the vehicle would be subject to

         15  impoundment.  The Police Department, Departments of

         16  Transportation and Parks and Recreation would

         17  enforce the law.

         18                 NYPIRG supports original Intro. No.

         19  98 as a reasonable step to take in an urban area,

         20  with limited private space for lawful use of

         21  motorized scooters and in light of the demonstrated

         22  dangers created by their use for riders, passengers,

         23  pedestrians, cyclists, skaters, runners, and

         24  lawfully used motor vehicles.  Despite being illegal

         25  to use in public places in the state, these scooters
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          2  typically are advertised and sold without reference

          3  to this fact or to their considerable danger.

          4                 Moreover, these scooters typically

          5  are used by uninsured operators, usually teenagers,

          6  who cannot provide compensation for any physical

          7  injury or property damage they cause through use of

          8  these motorized vehicles.

          9                 Simply put the operation of motorized

         10  scooters is particularly incompatible with densely

         11  populated urban areas such as New York City, and as

         12  such the prohibition of their sale, lease, rental,

         13  and use is warranted.

         14                 There is an aspect of this bill that

         15  warrants revision before it is approved by the

         16  Committee and put to a vote by the entire Council.

         17  The troubling provision was added to Intro. 98- A,

         18  and not contained in Intro. No. 98.  In particular,

         19  it is the exceptions to the prohibition contained in

         20  section 2 of the bill in proposed section 19- 176.2.

         21                 Section 19- 176.2 of Intro. No. 98- A

         22  carves out from the definition of "motorized

         23  scooters," which are the subject of the sale, lease,

         24  rental, and use ban those: Electric powered devices

         25  not capable of exceeding 25 mile per hour or
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          2   "electric personal assistive mobility devices"

          3  defined as self balancing, two non- tandem wheeled

          4  devices designed to transport one person by means of

          5  an electric propulsion system.

          6                 We see no public policy basis for

          7  exempting scooters, including "electric personal

          8  assistive mobility devices."  Electric Scooters,

          9  including the much- hyped Segway HT scooter, are

         10  illegal under State Vehicle and Traffic Law, and the

         11  City should not provide special legislative

         12  treatment for such motorized vehicles.  Indeed, on

         13  safety and public policy grounds no exemption is

         14  warranted.

         15                 For the past several years, the

         16  Segway Corporation has sought to change State law to

         17  allow the use of Segway Scooters on public

         18  sidewalks.  The various bills introduced in the

         19  Senate and Assembly all use a very detailed

         20  definition of "electric personal assistive mobility

         21  device," described as a "self- balancing, two non-

         22  tandem wheeled device designed to transport one

         23  person by means of an electric propulsion system."

         24  This is the same definition used in the exemption

         25  from Intro. 98 A.
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          2                 Segways and other electric motor

          3  scooters should not be exempted from Intro. 98- A.

          4                 Segways weigh more than 70 pounds,

          5  and are capable of traveling at speeds up to 12.5

          6  mph on flat surfaces, about the same speed as an

          7  Olympic runner and faster than New Yorkers are

          8  allowed to drive through E- Z Pass lanes.  Segways

          9  and other electric scooters should not be assumed to

         10  be safe for use in public spaces.

         11                 In fact, there is now independent

         12  data available that shows that at full speed the

         13  stopping distance for a Segway is about 17 feet

         14  under optimal conditions.  Segway's various consumer

         15  models, which would fit within the exception

         16  contained in Intro. No. 98- A weigh between 70 and

         17  83 pounds.  Segway has not released braking distance

         18  data, but in light of the Segway's substantial

         19  weight (around 80 pounds), the stopping distance is

         20  an important concern.

         21                 An analysis and field test of Segway

         22  stopping distance indicates that Segways cannot stop

         23  like humans moving at similar speeds, but rather

         24  stopping distances are similar to cars and bicycles.

         25    The field test found that an experienced Segway
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          2  rider on level, dry pavement could stop in about 17

          3  feet at top speed.  This was under optimal

          4  conditions in that the rider was focused on the

          5  stopping cues, the pavement was dry and level, and

          6  weather and visibility conditions were not a factor.

          7                 This is particularly of concern in

          8  light of the issues raised by Dr. Gary Smith, M.D.,

          9  Dr. Ph, Director of the Center for Injury Research

         10  and Policy at Columbus Children's Hospital.  Dr.

         11  Smith has sounded alarm bells about the dangers of

         12  placing Segways on the sidewalk with pedestrians.

         13  In particular, as a pediatrician Dr. Smith fears

         14  that "the calculated amount of force involved in a

         15  collision between a Segway HT and a child would be

         16  significant enough to cause serious injury* in San

         17  Francisco, which banned Segways.

         18                 NYPIRG urges the Transportation

         19  Committee to amend Intro. No. 98- A to remove the

         20  exemption for certain electric scooters, including

         21  those fitting the description of "electric personal

         22  assistive mobility devices" as was contained in the

         23  original version of Intro. No. 98.

         24

         25  Testimony of:
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          2  Edith Prentiss

          3  President

          4  Manhattan Borough-wide Interagency Council on Aging

          5

          6                 My name is Edith Prentiss; I am the

          7  President of the Manhattan Borough-wide Interagency

          8  council on Aging, (MBIAC), the Chair of the

          9  Disability Network of New York City's Transportation

         10  Committee, (DNNYC), and a member of Disabled in

         11  Action, (DIA).  I would like to thank the committee,

         12  and especially Chairman Liu for this opportunity to

         13  comment on Intro. 98- A.  We thank the member soft

         14  this Committee for working towards tougher

         15  legislation that will go beyond current laws, which

         16  ban the operation of all motorized scooters, and

         17  work to ban their sale, rental and lease, as well.

         18  Such action will improve the safety of all New

         19  Yorkers.

         20                 It is important to remember that

         21  despite the booming sale of these vehicles on New

         22  York's sidewalks, it is illegal to drive them on

         23  street or sidewalks.  The MBIAC office is located at

         24  29th Street and Fifth Avenue.  I travel to and from

         25  the office on 29th Street.  Between Broadway and 6th
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          2  Avenue there is a store, which uses the sidewalk as

          3  its show room.  Men and teenage boys hop onto the

          4  scooters and test drive on the street and sidewalk.

          5  It seems as if most of the purchasers are unfamiliar

          6  with laws and regulation related to the operation of

          7  motor vehicles.  They are often driven without

          8  regard for the law, recklessly, against the flow of

          9  traffic and sidewalks placing pedestrians,

         10  especially the elderly and disabled, at risk.

         11                 We oppose Intro. 98- A because it

         12  allows the sale of some brands of illegal motor

         13  scooters, particularly Segway scooters.

         14                 Of particular concern is the Segway

         15  scooter, marketed to be ridden on sidewalks, despite

         16  the fact that it is illegal in New York City.  There

         17  has been some discussion that Segways might serve as

         18  a mobility device for the disabled, but I can speak

         19  from experience that anyone who needs mobility

         20  assistance is not likely to have the balance and

         21  stamina to use a Segway.  In fact, I think we can

         22  confidently say that Segways are as much as or a

         23  greater a risk to pedestrians, including the elderly

         24  and disabled, than electric or gas powered vehicles

         25  banned by this bill.
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          2                 Segway scooters, electric scooters

          3  and motor scooters capable speeds less than they are

          4  currently illegal to operating on any public street

          5  or sidewalk in New York City and State.  Like the

          6  other illegal gas and electric- powered scooters

          7  whose sales are banned by this bill, it should be

          8  illegal to sell these illegal motor vehicles as

          9  well. Intro. 98 does this.

         10                 Should the day come when the State of

         11  New York and the New York State Department of Motor

         12  Vehicles regulate motorized scooters and legally

         13  allow them to be driven on public roads in New York

         14  State, then regulation should be legislated to allow

         15  any approved scooter, regardless of brand, be driven

         16  on streets and prohibited from driving on sidewalks.

         17                 Until the State approves the

         18  operation of any of these motor scooters, it should

         19  not be legal to sell them.

         20                 Why does Intro. 98- A grant

         21  preferential status to certain brands of illegal

         22  motorized scooters?  Why are Segway scooters and

         23  low- powered electric scooters exempted from the ban

         24  applied to other brands of illegal motor scooters?

         25  What is the basis for allowing some brands and not

                                                            75

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  others?

          3                 Why do we need the amended Intro. 98-

          4  A?  Intro. 98 improves safety.  Please pass Intro.

          5  98.  Thank you.

          6                 Again, thank you for the opportunity

          7  to address the Committee on this very important

          8  topic.

          9

         10  Testimony of:

         11  Jesse Day

         12  Executive Director

         13  New York Bicycling Coalition

         14

         15                 Chairman Liu and members of the

         16  Transportation Committee, my name is Jesse Day,

         17  Executive Director of the New York Bicycling

         18  Coalition, and organization that represents

         19  bicycling clubs and individuals throughout the

         20  State.  We have conducted bicycling and pedestrian

         21  safety studies and outreach workshops for the

         22  Governor's traffic Safety Committee (GTSC) as well

         23  as participated in work groups and advisory panels

         24  throughout the State on various transportation

         25  issues.  Thank you for the opportunity to comment on
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          2  New York City Council bill Intro. 98- A, which would

          3  ban the sale, rental, lease and operation of some

          4  dangerous motorized scooters in the Five Boroughs.

          5                 The recent proliferation of gas and

          6  electric powered scooters has created a major safety

          7  problem on our city streets.  So- called "pocket

          8  bikes," "mini- bikes," "go- peds," and "go- carts"

          9  do not contain any of the safety equipment required

         10  for motor vehicles upon city streets.  In this

         11  regard, according to the Department of Motor

         12  Vehicles, their operation is illegal. Segway

         13  scooters, also known as "electric personal assistive

         14  mobility devices," are also illegal to drive, but

         15  present a specific threat to pedestrians because

         16  this brand of motorized scooter is marketed to be

         17  driven on sidewalks.

         18                 We thank the members of this

         19  Committee for working towards tougher legislation in

         20  Intro. 98, that bans the operation of all motorized

         21  scooters, and to ban the sale, rental and lease of

         22  them as well.  This action will improve the safety

         23  of children and seniors and disabled and able-

         24  bodied New Yorkers.

         25                 We along with other groups listed
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          2  below are concerned that Intro. 98- A unfairly

          3  allows for the exemption of Segway scooters to be

          4  driven on sidewalks.

          5                 The Segway is an exciting technology.

          6    It is capable of speeds up to 20 miles per hour,

          7  but will be limited to 12.5 mph with a computer

          8  chip.  Hoped for benefits include increased

          9  industrial productivity, better public mobility, a

         10  new transportation option for the handicapped, and

         11  less reliance on gasoline powered vehicles.  These

         12  benefits seem plausible and so we welcome this new

         13  technology.  However, we feel it will cause serious

         14  problems as it competes with pedestrians on New York

         15  sidewalks.

         16                 New York State Department of Motor

         17  Vehicles should regulate the use of motorized

         18  scooters upon New York State streets and roadways,

         19  but until then the "bands on the sale, rental or

         20  lease" of these scooters as provided for in Intro.

         21  98 should be enforced.  The Segway scooter should

         22  not be exempted.

         23                 The Segway scooter is of bicycling

         24  and roller blading speed (12- 20 mph) and should be

         25  driven on streets and bicycle lanes where it will
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          2  not be in conflict with pedestrians. WE feel the

          3  appropriate safety equipment; helmet, reflective

          4  lights, and other additions should be provided for

          5  in the regulation of such equipment at the

          6  Department of Motor Vehicles.

          7                 Segway scooters and electric scooters

          8  capable of speeds less than twenty- five miles per

          9  hour, motor scooters exempted in Intro. 98- A, are

         10  currently illegal to operating on any public street,

         11  highway, sidewalk, bicycle and pedestrian bridge

         12  path and multi- use bicycle and pedestrian path in

         13  New York City and State.  Like the other illegal gas

         14  and electric- powered scooters whose sales are

         15  banned by this bill, it should be illegal to sell

         16  these illegal motor vehicles as well.  Intro. 98

         17  does this.

         18                 Until New York State approves the

         19  operation of any of these motor scooters, it should

         20  not be legal to sell them where private lands are

         21  not immediately available to use them upon.

         22                 We, along with many other groups

         23  cannot comprehend why certain brands of scooters are

         24  allowed to be sold, while others are not.

         25                 We believe this runs afoul of Article
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          2  Three, Section Seventeen of the Constitution of the

          3  State of New York.

          4                 We do not understand the need for the

          5  amended Intro. 98- A.  The original Intro. 98

          6  improves safety and should be passed as such.

          7                 Please pass Intro. 98.  Thank you.

          8                 These organizations oppose allowing

          9  motor scooters to be driven on sidewalks in New York

         10  City and State:

         11                 New York City Department of

         12  Transportation

         13                 AAA New York State

         14                 American Lung Association of New York

         15  State

         16                 New York Public Interest Research

         17  Group (NYPIRG)

         18                 New York Statewide Senior Action

         19  Council

         20                 Citizens Environmental Coalition

         21                 Environmental Advocates of New York

         22                 Tri- state Transportation Campaign

         23                 Natural Resources Defense Council

         24                 Regional Plan Association

         25                 Transportation Alternatives
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          2                 Brain Injury Society

          3                 Columbia Presbyterian Medical

          4  Center's Homebound Elderly Program

          5                 Institute for Transportation and

          6  Development Policy

          7                 Manhattan Borough- Wide Inter- Agency

          8  Council on Aging

          9                 neighborhood Streets Network

         10                 New York Bicycling Coalition

         11                 SAFE KIDS New York State

         12                 Sierra Club, Atlantic Chapter

         13                 Sierra Club, New York City

         14                 Washington Heights and Inwood Council

         15  on Aging.

         16                 (Hearing concluded at 12:00 p.m.)
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          8

          9                 I, PAT WTULICH, do hereby certify

         10  that the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript

         11  of the within proceeding.
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         13  related to any of the parties to this action by
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